
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN  MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS  STEVE HARVEY  KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

March 28, 2018 

Closed  Session 6:30PM  Regular Session 7:00 PM 
 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

March 28, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CLOSED  SESSION   

1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

1B. Roll Call 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Item  

1D. Closed Session  
Conference with Real Property Negotiations pursuant to Government Code 54956.8. 

Property under review:  006-066-027-000  

Negotiating parties:  Edward F. Marson 

Under negotiation:  Price and terms of payment 
 

2. CALL TO  ORD ER  

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Report from Closed Session 

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 

2D. Roll Call 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time to consider changes to the agenda including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented  or amended. 
 

3. PRESEN TATION S 

3A. Maidu Village Concept Plan 

Jeff Bordelon, Representative for Development 

3B. Sewer Rate Study Findings 

Mary Fleming and  Karen McBride, RCAC Rural Development Specialist  
 

4. CON SEN T CALEN D AR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an  

item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

4A. Minutes – Regular meeting March 14, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 14, 2018. 

4B. Cash Summary – February 2018 

Recommendation:  Receive and  file. 

4C. City Manager authorization to request Federal/State Funds for Pond III Fissure repairs  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 17-2018 designating the City Manager as 

authorized  agent to execute and  file applications with the California Governor’s Office of 

Emergency Service for the purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance and/ or state 

financial assistance. 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

March 28, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

5. PUBLIC COMMEN T 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to 

exceed three (3) minutes in length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is 

required it will be referred to staff. 
 

6. COUN CIL, STAFF AN D  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed 

at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member 

of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a 

future Council meeting agenda. 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

6B. City Operations Update – City staff 

6C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 

7. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

7A. Maidu Village Road Improvement Deposit Agreement 

 Staff Presentation:  Alfred  A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney  

 Recommendation:   Discuss and  consider adopting Resolution 18-2018 authorizing the 

City Manager to execute a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement with the developers of 

the Maidu Village Project. 

7B. Caltrans Cooperative Agreement for the S. Auburn St and I-80 Roundabout Project 

 Staff Presentation:  Marc Fernandez, Coastland  Engineering  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 19-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 

Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans under the State Highway Operations and  

Protection Program (SHOPP) for the S. Auburn St. and  I-80 Roundabout Project. 
  

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under 

this agenda item or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

9. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council a ction 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public he aring. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes March 14, 2018 

6A.     City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, March 14, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 OPEN SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the Meeting to order at 6:59PM. 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

Jim Wood, local volunteer, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
1C. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

2 PRESENTATION 
2A. Union Pacific Railroad 

Francisco Castillo, Union Pacific Director of Public Affairs 
Mr. Castillo updated Council regarding the derailment incident of February 22, 2018 when three 
empty, non-hazardous tank cars had a mechanical breakdown causing the train to come to an 
emergency stop.  The train had a total length of 109 cars and took a mile to come to a complete 
stop.  Thirty railroad ties were immediately replaced to allow train travel at a reduced speed.  
Eventually, Union Pacific will replace 200 to 250 ties as a result of the incident.   
City Manager Heathcock informed Council staff is in contact with Union Pacific officials to have 
the City sidewalk and platform damages repaired. 
Tim Ryan, 300 N. Main Street, asked technical questions of Mr. Castillo regarding the incident. 
Councilmember Harvey reminded everyone to stay back from railroad crossings in case 
emergencies occur. 
Mr. Castillo presented a PowerPoint explaining the safety processes used by Union Pacific. 
He mentioned the Union Pacific foundation which offers grants for safety, and community 
development and offers hazmat emergency response classes to law enforcement. 
Councilmember Harvey asked if the Colfax deputies have taken the Union Pacific classes.  
Sergeant Conners will be in touch with Mr. Castillo to see if it is feasible to provide the training to 
the deputies. 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
3A. Minutes - Regular Meeting February 28, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 28, 2018. 
3B. Easements for Village Oak subdivision development 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 16-2018 authorizing acceptance of the Emergency 
Vehicle Access Easement, the Sewer Easement and the Public Utility Easement between 
the City of Colfax and the Village Oaks Community, LLC, Sierra Oaks Estates, LLC, and 
Pinetop Properties, LLC. 

ITEM  4A
1 of 4



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes March 14, 2018 
 

3C. Sierra Vista Community Center Donation 
Recommendation:  Authorize donation $50 to organizer of the Chocolate, Wine, and Art 
Indulgence event at Sierra Vista Community Center from the Council budget for Economic 
Development – Event Support. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Tim Luckinbill, representative from the Colfax Lions 

 Mr. Luckinbill explained the Lions’ Club plan to initiate a Cruise Night for antique 
cars owners on the third Friday of the summer months in conjunction with the Art 
Walk.  It should be a fun way to bring more people downtown.  The Lions Club will 
provide insurance for its participants. 

Chris Dion, area resident 
 Mr. Dion handed Mayor Stockwin a petition against the proposed roundabout. 
 He mentioned several items about which he is unhappy:  the detail on the agendas, 

road conditions, Brown Law particulars, and operations of local businesses. 
Melanie Forsythe, Colfax Elementary School parent 

 Ms. Forsythe commented on the fundraising efforts for the sixth grade science 
camp.  The camp is very expensive.   

Mr. Luckinbill suggested she contact the local service clubs such as the Lions Club as they would 
be more than willing to help. 

 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Harvey 
 Councilmember Harvey stated the Placer County Transportation Planning Agency 

board will be meeting in closed session to interview candidates for the executive 
director position. 

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass mentioned the Pioneer Energy public meeting will be 

Monday at 3:00PM.  All Placer County residents are welcome to attend and voice 
their opinions.  Pioneer Energy currently plans to set rates 10% under PG&E rates. 

 He attended the Chamber Luncheon. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 

 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza relayed a “Thank you” to Council and the community 
from the Green Machine for the success of their Crab Feed fundraiser last week. 

Mayor Stockwin 
 Mayor Stockwin attended the Chamber Luncheon and was pleased Foxey McCleary 

received the Scoop Thurman Award Community Service Award. 
 The rain report stands at 8.5 inches in March with a season total of 32 inches. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  4A
2 of 4



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes March 14, 2018 
 

5B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

 City Manager Heathcock announced Chris Clardy will be stepping into the 
Community Services Director position on Monday.  This is a good example of 
internal succession which will potentially allow others to move up in the 
organization. 

 The City has received no response from the Historic Hotel owners, so a lien will be 
filed with the County tomorrow. 

Mick Cabral, City Attorney 
 City Attorney Cabral stated he has been working with the developer of Maidu 

Village on the terms of the agreement for their portion of the roundabout 
expenses.  The developer has been easy to work with and hopefully the details will 
be ready to bring to Council by the next meeting. 
 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Office Colfax Substation Commander 

 Sergeant Conners informed Council the County will implement a reservation 
system for the Bear River Campground.  Although the campground is outside of 
City limits, this should benefit the community and simplify law enforcement 
interaction at the campground. 

Officer Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol (CHP) Gold Run Public Information Officer 
 Officer Nave stated it is the 2 year anniversary of CHP Officer Nathan Taylor’s 

death.  The officer’s in the area continue to gratefully remember the support 
offered by the City during the aftermath of that tragic loss. 

 CHP will be hosting another Winter Driving Safety Clinic at the Gold Run Rest Stop 
this Friday. 

Chief Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 
 Chief Eagan stated the department has seven active volunteers and he has 

approved four new applications.  
 He is working with the volunteers to put together purchase orders for the $37,000 

matching funds received from the VFA Grant through Cal Fire.  The 2018/2019 
grant application will be brought to Council soon. 

 Chief Eagan explained in detail how the Fire Department responds to emergency 
hazmat situations or potential situations such as the train derailment.  Cal Fire 
regularly trains with Union Pacific personnel. 

 He (and Sgt. Conners) recommended everyone register their cell phone for 
Reverse 911 at PlacerAlert.org. 

Councilmember Harvey thanked Chief Eagan for the excellent report. 
 Frank Klein, President Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  

 Mr. Klein reported the annual Chamber Luncheon was a success and he thanked 
Foxey for her contributions to the community. 

 The Chamber Board elected new officers yesterday:  Frank Klein, President; Randy 
Eley, Vice-President; and Tim Ryan, Secretary. 

 The first mixer of the year will be in April. 
 Fred Abbott, Event Liaison 

 Mr. Abbott talked about plans for Railroad Days which will be the third weekend in 
September. 

ITEM  4A
3 of 4



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes March 14, 2018 
 

 Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  
 Ms. McCleary invited everyone the monthly VFW Breakfast held the 2nd Sunday of 

every month. 
 She reminded everyone the Chocolate, Wine, and Art will be on April 22nd. 
 She also announced the Sierra Vista Community Center Painting Party will be on 

March 23rd.  Community members are invited to enjoy lessons and refreshments. 
 Sharon Conners, Sierra Vista Community Center  

 Ms. Conners thanked the Council for the donation towards purchase of the 
Chocolate Wine and Art Indulgence event banner. 

 She mentioned Lumenaris is open and a lovely addition to Colfax. 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A.  Agreements with Vision Quest for Information Technology Services  
 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 17-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a professional services agreement with Vision Quest Information Solutions Inc. for a three 
year term with an option to renew for an additional two years. 

 

City Manager Heathcock explained the City has used the services of Vision Quest for about 7 
months with good results.  Staff is recommending Council formalize the relationship with Vision 
Quest and lock in the rates with a long-term agreement.  Staff has also received quotes for 
website design and recommends Vision Quest as the lowest cost proposal for website design.  
Steve Reis with Vision Quest is present to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

Councilmember Douglass stated he would like to see a more detailed analysis and proposal of 
costs from Vision Quest as well as proposals from other companies.   
 

Council and staff discussed the concerns and decided to table this topic so staff could bring back 
a more detailed report for Council’s approval. 
 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass announced the girls’ basketball team will be competing in state finals 
this week. 
Councilmember Douglass asked if there is an Emergency Management Plan in place and was 
informed the plan is in City Hall. 
 

8 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilmember Harvey made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza to adjourn the 
meeting. 
As all were in favor, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 8:40PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28th day of March, 2018 
 

ITEM  4A
4 of 4



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE  MARCH 28, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: March 19, 2018 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: February 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: February 2018. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
February 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 

 Negative cash fund balances in Special Revenues and Capital project funds are due to timing of 
funding allocations and reimbursements.   

o Fund 250 - Streets& Roads – The first allocation from PCTPA for FY2017-2018 funding has 
been received in February.  The balance of PCTPA funding and transfer of internal General 
Funds as budgeted will finalize in June. 

o Fund 355 and 385 – Initial project costs to be reimbursed with project funding. 

 Major Expenses for February included: 
o Bi annual payment for purchase of Winner Chevrolet property - $115K 
o Annual audit fees - $21K 

 Major Revenues for February included: 
o Monthly estimated sales tax revenues 
o Sale of miscellaneous property - $17K 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

ITEM  4B
1 of 10



ITEM  4B
2 of 10



ITEM  4B
3 of 10



ITEM  4B
4 of 10



ITEM  4B
5 of 10



ITEM  4B
6 of 10



ITEM  4B
7 of 10



ITEM  4B
8 of 10



ITEM  4B
9 of 10



ITEM  4B
10 of 10



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE MARCH 28, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Staff 
DATE: March 21, 2018 

SUBJECT: City Manager authorization to request Federal/State Funds for Pond III Fissure repairs 
 

X N/A   REIMBURSABLE   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 17-2018 designating the City Manager as authorized agent 
to execute and file applications with the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for the 
purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance and/or state financial assistance. 

 
SUMMARY:   
During the major storms of January 2017, a portion of the southwesterly bank of Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Pond 3 subsided creating a fissure from storm water intrusion.  Staff coordinated a site visit on January 27, 2017 
including representatives from Placer OES, the State of California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and City of Colfax staff.  A formal request for disaster 
assistance was submitted shortly after the site visit.  On July 14, 2017, the City was notified by Cal OES that the 
request for assistance was approved by FEMA.  Subsequently, in Resolution 33-2017, Council authorized then 
Interim City Manager Wes Heathcock to execute and file appropriate agreements.   
 
Staff was recently notified the City’s request has been placed on hold pending a resolution correcting City 
Manager Heathcock’s job title on the attached form (Cal OES Form 130) that satisfies state requirements as well 
as the attached Project Assurance form (Cal OES Form 89).  Staff requests the Council approve the attached 
resolution to designate the City Manager as the authorized agent for the City. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
No impact to the general fund at this time. The City may be eligible to receive reimbursement through FEMA 
disaster mitigation funding.   

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 17-2018 
2. Cal OES Form 130 
3. Cal OES Form 89  

ITEM  4C
1 of 6



City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № 17-2018 

DESIGNATING THE CITY MANAGER AS THE AUTHORIZED AGENT 
TO EXECUTE AND FILE APPLICATIONS WITH THE CALIFORNIA 

GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

AND/OR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE  

WHEREAS, during the major storms of January 2017, a portion of the southwesterly 
bank of the WWTP Pond 3 subsided creating a fissure from storm water intrusion; and 

WHEREAS, the City formally requested disaster assistance; and 

WHEREAS, the City was notified by the California Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services (CalOES)the request for assistance was approved by FEMA; and 

WHEREAS, the State requires the City to designate the authorized agent to execute 
and file the application for federal and/or state financial assistance on CalOES Form 130. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 

1) The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are
incorporated into this Resolution.

2) The City Manager is hereby designated as the authorized agent for the City of
Colfax as stated in the attached CalOES Form 130 which is hereby incorporated
into this resolution.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th day of March, 2018 
by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

___________________________________ 
ATTEST: Will Stockwin, Mayor 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4C
2 of 6



STATE OF CALIFORNIA     
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
Cal OES 130 

DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION 
FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE  OF THE 
 (Governing Body)            (Name of Applicant) 

THAT , OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 

, OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 

(Title of Authorized Agent) 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the , a public entity 
  (Name of Applicant) 

established under the laws of the State of California, this application and to file it with the California Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services for the purpose of obtaining certain federal financial assistance under Public Law 93-288 as amended by the Robert T. Stafford 
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, and/or state financial assistance under the California Disaster Assistance Act. 

THAT the ________________________________________________, a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, 
        (Name of Applicant) 

hereby authorizes its agent(s) to provide to the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for all matters pertaining to such state disaster 
assistance the assurances and agreements required. 

Please check the appropriate box below: 

This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and future disasters up to three (3) years following the date of approval below. 

This is a disaster specific resolution and is effective for only disaster number(s) ________________________ 

Passed and approved this  day of , 20 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

CERTIFICATION 

I,  , duly appointed and    of 
 (Name) (Title) 

, do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a 
(Name of Applicant) 

Resolution passed and approved by the of the 
 (Governing Body) (Name of Applicant) 

on the   day of   , 20  . 

  (Signature)   (Title) 

Cal OES 130 (Rev.9/13)       Page 1 

Cal OES ID No: ___#061-14498______________ 

City Council City of Colfax

City Manager

City of Colfax

City of Colfax

X #4301

28th March 18

Lorraine Cassidy City Clerk

the City of Colfax

City Council City of Colfax

28th March 18

City Clerk

Will Stockwin, Mayor

Marnie Mendoza, Mayor Pro Tem

ITEM  4C
3 of 6



Cal OES 89 (Rev.02/17) (Page 1 of 3) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA Disaster No: 
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
Cal OES 89 Cal OES ID No:    

 
DUNS No:    

 
 

PROJECT ASSURANCES FOR FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 
 
 

SUBRECIPIENT’S NAME:  
     (Name of Organization) 

 

ADDRESS:  
 

CITY:    STATE:   ZIP CODE:    
 

TELEPHONE:    FAX NUMBER:    
 

AUTHORIZED AGENT:   TITLE:    
 

EMAIL ADDRESS:    
 

ASSURANCES – CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 
 

Note:     Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to all of your projects. If you have questions, please contact the California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. Further, certain federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to 
certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

 
As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the subrecipient named above: 

 
1. Has the legal authority to apply for federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including 

funds sufficient to pay the non-federal share of project costs) to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of the 
project described in this application. 

 
2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the Unites States, Federal Office of Inspector General 2 CFR 

200.336, and if appropriate, the state, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, 
books, papers, or documents related to the assistance; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

 
3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title, or other interest in the site and facilities 

without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the federal interest in the title of real property in 
accordance with awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in 
part with federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of the project. 

 
4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance-awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and approval of 

construction plans and specifications. 
 

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to ensure that the 
complete work conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish progress reports and such other 
information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency or state. 

 
6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 

 
7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the 

appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gains. 
 

8. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4801 et seq.), which prohibits the use of 
lead based pain in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  4C
4 of 6



Cal OES 89 (Rev.02/17) (Page 2 of 3) 

9. Will comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; (b) Title 
IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C §§ 1681-1683 and 1685-1686) which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794) which 
prohibit discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101- 

6107) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 93-
255) as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616) as amended, relating to nondiscrimination 
on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd- 
3 and 290 ee-3) as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of 
housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) which may apply to the application. 

 
10. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and 

Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provides for fair and equitable treatment of persons 
displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of federal and federally assisted programs. These requirements apply to 
all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of federal participation in purchases. 

 
11. Will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 

(P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood 
insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $5,000 or more. 

 
12. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of 

environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.O 91-190) and Executive 
Order (E0) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 
11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency 
with the approved state management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§ 
1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean 
Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the 
Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.O. 93-205). 

 
13. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§ 1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or 

potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system. 
 

14. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, 
as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), EO 11593 (identification and preservation of historic properties), and the Archeological and 
Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq.). 

 
15. Will comply with Standardized Emergency Management (SEMS) requirements as stated in the California Emergency 

Services Act, Government Code, Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2, Section 8607.1(e) and CCR Title 19, Sections 2445, 
2446, 2447, and 2448. 

 
16. Subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in federal grant funds annually are required to secure an audit pursuant to 

OMB Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance 
audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. 

 
17. Will disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in 

accordance with §200.112. 
 
18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal laws, Executive Orders, regulations and policies governing 

this program. 
 
19. Has requested through the State of California, federal financial assistance to be used to perform eligible work approved in 

the subrecipient application for federal assistance. Will, after the receipt of federal financial assistance, through the State of 
California, agree to the following: 

 
a. The state warrant covering federal financial assistance will be deposited in a special and separate account, and will be 

used to pay only eligible costs for projects described above; 
 

b. To return to the State of California such part of the funds so reimbursed pursuant to the above numbered application, 
which are excess to the approved actual expenditures as accepted by final audit of the federal or state government. 

 
c. In the event the approved amount of the above numbered project application is reduced, the reimbursement applicable 

to the amount of the reduction will be promptly refunded to the State of California. 
 

ITEM  4C
5 of 6



Cal OES 89 (Rev.02/17) (Page 3 of 3) 

 
 
 20. The non-Federal entity for a Federal award must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the Federal awarding agency 

or  pass-through entity all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially 
affecting the Federal award §200.113. Failure to make required disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in 
§200.338 Remedies for noncompliance, including suspension or debarment. 

 
 

21. Will not make any award or permit any award (subaward or contract) to any party which is debarred or suspended or is 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs under Executive Order 12549 and 
12689, “Debarment and Suspension.” 

 
 
  
 

“I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized by the above named 
subrecipient to enter into this agreement for and on behalf of the said subrecipient, and by my signature do bind the subrecipient  
to the terms thereof.” 

 
 
 
 

 
PRINTED NAME 

 
 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL  
 

 
TITLE         DATE 
 

ITEM  4C
6 of 6



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE MARCH 28, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Maidu Village Road Improvement Deposit Agreement 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution No.   -2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to execute a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement with the developers of the Maidu Village 
Project 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The City is planning to construct a roundabout at the intersection of South Auburn Street and the on-ramp 
and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80. Design is proceeding quickly and is at the 50% level. If the 
roundabout project continues at its present pace, staff anticipates soliciting construction bids in mid-
summer, 2018, and beginning construction in September. 
 
The City has secured approximately $2,150,000 in grants to fund design and construction of the 
roundabout. Based on current engineering estimates, there is a funding shortfall of about $450,000. The 
City does not have sufficient funds at its disposal to fill that funding gap and has exhausted all conventional 
means of financing.  The roundabout project will likely have to be stopped unless the funding shortfall is 
covered. Stopping the project will cause the state and federal grants available to the City to be lost. 
 
Jaskaran “Jay” Gill owns or controls an 8.3-acre parcel of undeveloped land that fronts on South Auburn 
Street directly across from the Interstate-80 on-ramp and off-ramp that will be affected by the roundabout. 
His property is commonly known as “Maidu Village” and is generally depicted on the attached map entitled 
“Preliminary Layout”.  
 
Development of the Maidu Village property has been challenging, in part because of the expense of 
mitigating traffic impacts. The developer initially anticipated that installing a traffic signal at the 
intersection of South Auburn and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80 would adequately 
mitigate the impacts of development.  
 
The City commissioned an Intersection Control Evaluation (“ICE”) study to examine the improvements to 
that intersection that will be needed to accommodate full development of the Maidu Village parcel.  The 
ICE study concluded that fully developing the Maidu Village parcel will require signalizing three 

ITEM  7A
1 of 19



2 

 

intersections, not one. Installing traffic signals at three intersections is cost-prohibitive. The proposed 
roundabout will adequately mitigate the anticipated traffic impacts. 
 
The owner of the Maidu Village property proposes to develop it to include a gas station, sit-down 
restaurant, fast food restaurant, motel, and commercial building. The general layout of that proposed 
development is shown on the attached Preliminary Layout.  
 
Developing the Maidu Village property will require the developer to construct various road frontage 
improvements along South Auburn Street. Those improvements are generally shown in green on the 
attached Preliminary Layout. The estimated cost of constructing the frontage improvements is $240,000. It 
is impractical for the City to build the roundabout and the developer to separately install the frontage 
improvements. The City and developer have tentatively agreed, therefore, that the City will construct the 
frontage improvements as part of the overall roundabout project construction.  
 
That $240,000 is the first partial source of funds whereby the City will fill the roundabout project funding 
shortfall. Before the Council this evening is a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement whereby, upon 
request from the City, the developer will deposit $240,000 toward the cost of the frontage improvements. 
The City will be permitted to expend up to $150,000 of that deposit for the design of the roundabout 
project. Staff is satisfied that $150,000 will provide sufficient funding to complete roundabout design. 
 
Under ordinary circumstances, the developer would not be expected to advance funds toward a project 
until a development is approved and entitled. In this instance, the developer is willing to advance funds 
without first receiving project entitlements, so the roundabout project can move forward. 
 
The proposed agreement provides that the City will proceed with design, engineering, financing, 
permitting, supervising and constructing the roundabout project. The developer will advance the needed 
$240,000, $150,000 of which can be spent on the roundabout project pending negotiation of a 
development agreement that will commit the City to processing the developer’s project approvals.  
 
The agreement allows the City and developer 120 days to negotiate a development agreement. If that is 
not successful, or if roundabout construction does not begin by July 1, 2019, the City will be required to 
refund the entire $240,000 advance, plus accrued interest. If the City does not have sufficient funds with 
which to do so, it can refund the advance with a promissory note fully amortized over two years, with 
interest at the rate of 3%. The developer can elect to apply the deposit to development fees applicable to 
developing the Maidu Village property in lieu of accepting a cash refund or promissory note.  
 
This is a risky transaction for both the City and the developer. Although the City and developer anticipate 
that the roundabout will be constructed, and the Maidu Village property will receive development 
entitlements, either or both possibilities may fail. If failure happens, the City will be burdened with repaying 
an advance with funds it does not have and will have to raise, the developer may be burdened with 
property for which development is prohibitively expensive, and traffic congestion issues will still have to be 
addressed. Moreover, the $2,150,000 in grant funds currently available to the City will be lost and allocated 
to other agencies.  
 
If this series of transactions is successful, the roundabout will be built, traffic congestion issues will be 
mitigated, and the Maidu Village property will become instantly developable. This will be accomplished 
with grant funds so the overall cost to the City will be minimal. Council must determine whether the overall 

ITEM  7A
2 of 19



3 

 

benefit of project success outweighs the risk of project failure, and whether the proposed agreement is in 
the City’s best interests.  
 
The $240,000 advance is not sufficient to cover the entire approximately $450,000 roundabout funding 
shortfall.  There are three other potential sources of funding being explored by the City and the developer: 
 
1. The Maidu Village development is estimated to generate $200,000 in road mitigation fees. The City 
and developer will be negotiating the conditions under which the developer will advance those fees as part 
of the development agreement negotiations.  
 
2. The Maidu Village developer would likely have to install as many as three traffic signals to develop 
its project. The City and developer are negotiating a “fair share” payment whereby the developer will pay 
the City approximately $235,000 in lieu of having to signalize any intersection. This is being negotiated as 
part of the development agreement. 
 
3. The City needs to acquire a portion of the Maidu Village property to construct the roundabout. The 
property the City needs has an estimated net value of $32,000.  The City is negotiating a credit for the value 
of that property as part of the development agreement. 
 
The City does not need to immediately fill the entire funding shortfall, so staff has been negotiating phased 
contributions from the developer. The developer has suggested depositing $240,000 upon request by the 
City as part of the proposed agreement before the Council, a second deposit upon approval of the 
anticipated development agreement, and a final deposit upon commencement of roundabout construction.  
 
Staff will be available to answer Council’s questions.  
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 19-2018 
2. Agreement 
3. Exhibits A-D 

 

ITEM  7A
3 of 19



Resolution 18-2018 Maidu Village Road Agreement 1  

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 18-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT DEPOSIT AGREEMENT WITH THE DEVELOPERS OF 

THE MAIDU VILLAGE PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, The City is planning to construct a roundabout at the intersection of 
South Auburn Street and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80 (the 
“Roundabout”); and 

 
WHEREAS, design of the Roundabout is approximately 50% complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has secured approximately $2,150,000 in grants to fund design 

and construction of the Roundabout but has a funding shortfall of approximately $450,000; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the undeveloped Maidu Village property fronts on South Auburn Street 

directly across from the Interstate-80 on-ramp and off-ramp that will be affected by the 
Roundabout; and  

 
WHEREAS, the owner of the Maidu Village property proposes to develop it to 

include a gas station, sit-down restaurant, fast food restaurant, motel, and commercial 
building; and 

 
WHEREAS, construction of the Roundabout will help mitigate traffic conditions 

within the City, including traffic impacts related to development of the Maidu Village 
parcel; and  

 
WHEREAS, developing the Maidu Village property will require the developer, at 

developer expense, to construct road frontage improvements (the “Road Frontage 
Improvements”) along South Auburn Street that are estimated to cost $240,000; and  

 
WHEREAS, constructing the Road Frontage Improvements as part of the 

Roundabout project will promote efficiency for both projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is willing to construct the Road Frontage Improvements, at 

developer expense, as part of constructing the Roundabout; and 
 
WHEREAS, the developer of the Maidu Village property is willing to advance the 

estimated $240,000 cost of installing the Road Frontage Improvements in accordance with 

ITEM  7A
4 of 19



Resolution 18-2018 Maidu Village Road Agreement 2  

the terms and conditions of the Road Improvement Deposit Agreement in the form 
attached to this Resolution; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that approving the Road Improvement Deposit 

Agreement in the form attached to this Resolution is in the City’s best interests.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 

follows: 
 

1) The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are 
incorporated into this Resolution. 

 
2) The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of and in the name of 

the City of Colfax the Road Improvement Deposit Agreement in the form 
attached to this Resolution. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th day of March, 2018 
by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

 
                           ___________________________________ 

ATTEST:      Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  7A
5 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

ROAD IMPROVEMENT DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

This Road Improvement Deposit Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered by and 

among the City of Colfax, a General Law City and Municipal Corporation of the State of 

California (“City”), and Jaskaran “Jay” Gill an individual(“Developer”). The City and Developer 

may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.  

RECITALS 

This Agreement is entered on the basis of the following facts, understandings and 

intentions of the Parties: 

 

A. Developer owns approximately 8.3152 acres of unimproved real property on 

South Auburn Street near its intersection with the westbound Interstate-80 on-ramp and off-ramp 

in Colfax, California, commonly known and described as Placer County Assessor’s Parcel #100-

240-016-000 (the “Property”).  The Property is generally depicted on Placer County, California 

Assessor’s Map Book 100, Page 24 attached as Exhibit A hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein.   

 

B. Developer is an individual, organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

California, in good standing thereunder, and qualified to conduct business in California. 

Developer intends to develop the Property to include a motel, sit-down restaurant, gas station, 

fast food restaurant and commercial building, and to provide necessary public vehicular, 

pedestrian and other access, ingress and egress (the “Developer’s Project”). The Developer’s 

Conceptual Site Plan for the Developer’s Project is attached hereto, marked Exhibit B and by this 

reference incorporated herein. The City and Developer understand and agree that the 

Developer’s Project may change and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to require the 

Developer to construct the development depicted in Exhibit B hereto, to preclude Developer 

from doing so or from changing the Developer’s Project, or to vest Developer with any 

development rights regarding the Property or the Developer’s Project. The City and Developer 

intend to enter a separate development agreement in which Developer will be vested with the 

right to develop the Property on mutually-agreed conditions (the “Development Agreement”).    

 

C.  The Property is located near the intersection of South Auburn Street, and the on-

ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80 (the “Intersection”). The City and Developer 

envision that the Intersection will provide primary access to the Property and the Developer’s 

Project.   

 

D. The Developer initially anticipated that modifying the Intersection, and installing 

a traffic signal, would adequately mitigate the traffic impacts of the Developer’s Project and 

allow the Developer’s Project to be constructed as the Developer anticipated. Although the 

Parties disagree regarding the facts and circumstances that have transpired, it has been 

determined that construction of a roundabout is the preferred solution at the intersection of South 

Auburn Street and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80 (the “Roundabout”).   

 

 

ITEM  7A
6 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

E. Constructing the Roundabout will require the City to acquire a portion of the 

Property. The Developer and the City intend to address the terms under which Developer may be 

willing to dedicate a portion of the Property necessary to construct the Roundabout (the 

“Roundabout Dedication”), in the anticipated Development Agreement.  

 

F. The City has initiated the design, planning and engineering of the Roundabout at 

the intersection of South Auburn Street and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-

80. Once the Roundabout is constructed, the traffic impacts of the Developer’s Project are 

anticipated to be sufficiently mitigated to allow the Developer’s Project to be developed so long 

as other road improvements as described below are simultaneously developed and the 

Developer’s Project does not change in a manner that would affect traffic flows. 

 

G. Development of the Developer’s Project will require the Developer to construct 

certain street widening and frontage improvements on South Auburn Street, a fourth leg to the 

intersection to enter the site, and associated right-of-way dedications to the City (the “Road 

Improvements”).  The Road Improvements represent that portion of the roundabout intersection 

improvements that are wholly for the benefit of Developer’s project and which for practical 

purposes must be constructed as an integral part of the Roundabout construction that will be 

performed by the City.  Absent these extraordinary circumstances the Developer would normally 

separately and independently cause the construction of the Road Improvements. The Road 

Improvements are generally depicted in Exhibit C attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein. The Parties agree that constructing the Road Improvements independent of 

building the Roundabout is impractical and infeasible, and both Parties will benefit from 

constructing the Road Improvements in a single project. 

 

H. Construction of the Road Improvements is estimated to cost $240,000.00, 

excluding the extension of utilities to the Property, as reflected in the most current cost estimate 

attached as Exhibit D hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.  

 

I. The City has limited resources available to fund the construction of the 

Roundabout. It has secured partial funding commitments but a funding shortfall of 

approximately $450,000.00 remains. The City does not have the financial ability to address that 

funding shortfall, and will not proceed with the design, planning, engineering or construction of 

the Roundabout unless that funding shortfall is adequately addressed. 

 

J. The Colfax Municipal Code establishes and requires payment of fees to mitigate 

the road impacts created by development projects (“Road Mitigation Fees”). The Developer’s 

Project is one such project for which it is anticipated that the Developer will incur and be 

required to pay Road Mitigation Fees to cover a portion of the Roundabout funding shortfall. 

Developer’s willingness to advance Road Mitigation Fees and otherwise consider a fair share 

contribution to the Roundabout will be addressed in the anticipated Development Agreement.  

 

 K. By this Agreement, the City and Developer desire to establish a cooperative 

process whereby the Developer will advance the estimated $240,000.00 cost of the Road 

Improvements as a good faith affirmation of its willingness and interest to participate in the cost 

of the roundabout construction while Developer’s entitlement applications are pending and 

ITEM  7A
7 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

before approval of the parties anticipated pending Development Agreement. The City will 

proceed diligently and in good faith with the design, engineering, financing, permitting, 

supervision and construction of the Roundabout and the Road Improvements, with the 

understanding that the Development Agreement and other Developer’s entitlement permits may 

be required before full Developer funding commitments are made. 

 

 L. The cooperative process the City and Developer are developing may involve 

Developer advancing the entire $450,000.00 funding shortfall the City is experiencing. As of the 

Effective Date of this Agreement, the Parties anticipate that additional Developer advances may 

include prepayment of the Road Mitigation Fees applicable to Developer’s Project. The terms of 

any additional Developer advances will be negotiated in conjunction with the pending 

Development Agreement.     

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, 

the City and Developer agree as follows: 

 

Section 1:  Incorporation of Recitals.   

 

1.1 The foregoing Recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated into 

this Agreement by this reference.  

 

Section 2: Effective Date and Term. 

 

2.1 Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be dated and the obligations of the City and the 

Developer shall be effective as of the date upon which this Agreement is executed by the City 

(the “Effective Date”).  

2.2 Term. The Term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 

expire two (2) years thereafter unless extended as hereinafter provided.  

 

Section 3:  Road Improvements. 

 

3.1  City Obligation:  If the Developer advances the estimated cost of the Road Improvements 

as hereinafter provided, the City shall, at its cost, diligently and in good faith proceed with the 

design, engineering, financing, permitting, supervision and construction of the Roundabout and 

the Road Improvements subject to further agreement between the parties regarding the balance 

of the Developer funding needed by the City that will be addressed in the pending Development 

Agreement and entitlement terms and conditions.  The funds deposited by Developer shall be 

applied by the City to pay the actual costs of the Road Improvements as part of the full 

construction of the Roundabout and shall be paid and applied as hereinafter provided. 

 

3.2 Developer Deposit:  Upon written request by the City, the Developer shall deposit the 

estimated $240,000.00 cost of the Road Improvements (“Developer’s Deposit”) into an interest-

bearing custodial escrow account (the “Escrow Account”) in the name of the City with a 

ITEM  7A
8 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

depository that the City shall select, subject to Developer’s reasonable approval. Developer’s 

Deposit shall earn interest at a rate customarily set by the depository in the normal course of its 

business. Upon making Developer’s Deposit, Developer shall sign escrow instructions and such 

other documents as are necessary to allow the City to expend Developer’s Deposit upon the 

City’s application to the escrow holder without additional approval by Developer, provided that 

such expenditures are otherwise in conformance with the terms of this Agreement. Once 

deposited and unless the deposited funds are refunded or credited as hereinafter provided, the 

Developer shall have no further obligation for Road Improvement Construction Costs except for 

cost increases provided for in Section 4.3 and any additional utility relocation costs not included 

in the Road Improvement Cost Exhibit D. 

 

Section 4. Expenditure and Credit or Return of Developer’s Deposit. 

 

4.1 Expenditure.  The City has secured funding commitments for a majority of the cost of the 

design, engineering, financing, permitting, supervision and construction of the Roundabout but 

does not have sufficient resources to proceed without the Developer’s Deposit or another source 

of funds. The Developer is willing to deposit the Developer’s Deposit in accordance with the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement in order to provide availability of Developer funding 

sureties while the City is proceeding with the Roundabout planning and development. To that 

end, the City may expend the Developer’s Deposit on the following terms and conditions: 

 

 4.1.1 The City may expend the Developer’s Deposit only for the design, engineering, 

financing, permitting, supervision and construction of the Road Improvements, except that 

during the interim between the deposit and the commencement of Roundabout construction the 

City may use ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000) of the 

deposit funds to pay for general Roundabout related design, engineering, and other consulting 

services, with the understanding that the funds so used shall be applied to Road Improvement 

related costs, or as provided in Section 4.2.1, the funds shall be refunded to Developer.  

 

 4.1.2 The City shall expend funds in its possession that have been allocated to the 

Roundabout Project before it expends the Developer’s Deposit for Road Improvements 

 

 4.1.3 The City shall reasonably and in good faith negotiate the terms and conditions of 

a Development Agreement within the time constraints contained in Section 4.2.2 below.   

 

 4.1.4 The City shall notify the Developer of the City’s intent to expend any part of the 

Developer’s Deposit at least five (5) days prior to the expenditure. Such notice shall identify the 

purpose and estimated cost of each expenditure. If the Developer fails to object in writing to the 

proposed expenditure within that five-day period, the Developer shall be deemed to have 

approved the expenditure. If the Developer objects in writing to the expenditure within that five-

day period, the Parties shall promptly meet and discuss the basis for the Developer’s objection. A 

failure to object by Developer shall not constitute a waiver of the City’s obligation to comply 

with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 

 4.1.5  The expenditure of any funds is subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4.2 

below. 

ITEM  7A
9 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

4.2 Deposit Expenditure Conditions, Credit or Return of Developer’s Deposit.  Expenditure 

of the Developer’s Deposit shall be conditioned, returned or credited as follows: 

 

 4.2.1 The Developer’s Deposit assumes, in part, the successful negotiation of the 

Development Agreement. To that end, if the Parties have not successfully negotiated the 

Development Agreement within 120 days of the date of this Agreement, then the Developer’s 

Deposit shall, be refunded to Developer in full together with all interest accrued thereupon in the 

Escrow Account, as follows: 

  

  4.2.1.1 If the City has or can reasonably acquire sufficient cash resources to 

refund the entire Developer’s Deposit and accrued interest, then the City shall repay the 

Developer’s Deposit and all interest accrued thereupon in cash or equivalent. 

 

  4.2.1.2 If the City reasonably and in good faith determines that refunding the 

Developer’s Deposit and all accrued interest in full is not feasible, the City shall repay the 

Developer’s Deposit pursuant to the terms of a promissory note (the “Refund Note”). If this 

repayment option is selected by the City, the Refund Note shall (a) have a principal balance 

equal to the full unpaid balance of the Developer’s Deposit not refunded, (b) be due and payable 

in two equal annual installments of interest and principal , (c) be fully amortized over its 

duration, and (d) carry interest at the rate of three percent (3%) per .annum.  

 

  4.2.1.3 The Developer may, in its discretion, elect to apply the sums to be 

refunded or owed by the City on the Refund note to mitigation impact fees or other City 

exactions applicable to Developer’s Project. 

 

 4.2.2 The Developer’s Deposit is also conditioned, in part, upon the Roundabout being 

constructed in a timely fashion. To that end, if construction of the Roundabout has not 

commenced by July 1, 2019, then the Developer’s Deposit together with all interest that has 

accrued thereupon in the Escrow Account shall be refunded to Developer in accordance with 

Sections 4.2.1.1., through 4.2.1.3, inclusive.  

 

 4.2.3    The Developer has made application for the following described entitlements for 

Developer’s Project. Such entitlement approvals will be addressed in the pending Development 

Agreement.  If these entitlement approvals are not received in accordance with a mutually 

acceptable Development Agreement, then the Developer’s Deposit with accrued interest shall be 

refunded to Developer in full together with all interest accrued thereupon in the Escrow Account 

in accordance with Sections 4.2.1.1., through 4.2.1.3, inclusive. 

 

 4.2.4 The City shall not, without the Developer’s written consent, expend more than 

$150,000.00 of the Developer’s Deposit before the anticipated Development Agreement is 

approved, at which time the funds shall be expended to pay for Road Improvement costs or 

otherwise allocated as set forth in a mutually acceptable Development Agreement.   

 

4.3 Reconciling Road Improvement Costs.  The Parties understand and agree that the 

Developer’s Deposit is an estimate of the Road Improvement Costs and that the actual cost of 

constructing the Road Improvements may be more than, or less than, $240,000.00.  If the actual 

ITEM  7A
10 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

cost of constructing the Road Improvements exceeds the Developer’s Deposit, then the 

difference between the actual cost of constructing the Road Improvements and Developer’s 

Deposit shall be paid by the Developer to the City.  If the actual cost of constructing the Road 

Improvements is less than the Developer’s Deposit, then the difference between $240,000.00 and 

the actual cost of constructing the Road Improvements shall be refunded or credited to the 

Developer. The City shall secure a separate reasonable and good faith line item bid for the Road 

Improvements as part of its overall Roundabout construction contract and shall provide 

Developer with a copy of this bid prior to City contract acceptance.  City and Developer shall 

meet and confer in good faith to ensure a reasonable Road Improvement cost.  Provided that the 

additional costs do not exceed 10% of the above cost estimate, the City may proceed over any 

objections of the Developer, who shall deposit the additional required funds promptly.  If the 

Road Improvement construction costs exceed the 10% increase, then the parties shall in good 

faith attempt to secure alternative lower cost bids.  If no lower costs bids can be reasonably 

secured, then Developer shall contribute such additional funds as are required. 

 

4.4 Covenants Run With The Land.  All of the conditions, covenants and agreements herein, 

including without limitation all dedications, fees, exactions, and payments required by this 

Agreement shall run with the land and encumber the Property. 

 

Section 5.  Transfers and Assignments. 

 

5.1        No Transfer Without City’s Consent.  Developer shall not assign, transfer, pledge, 

encumber or otherwise dispose of any interest under this Agreement without the City’s prior 

written consent, which the City may approve or deny in its sole discretion. An assignment 

approved or permitted by this Section shall not release the assignor from any liabilities arising 

prior to the date of such assignment.  Any disposition by the Developer without the prior written 

consent of the City as herein provided, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, by operation of 

law or otherwise, shall be deemed void and shall, at the option of City, be an Event of Default 

hereunder.  A consent by the City to one assignment shall not be deemed to be a consent to any 

subsequent disposition.   

 

Section 6.  Notices. 

 

6.1 Procedure.  Any notice or communication required pursuant to this Agreement by any 

Party ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be given either personally, by facsimile 

transmission, by Federal Express or other similar courier promising overnight delivery, or by 

regular U.S. mail.  

 

(a) If given by Federal Express or similar courier, the Notice shall be deemed to have 

been given and received on the date delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. 

 

(b) If personally delivered, a Notice shall be deemed to have been given when 

actually delivered to the Party to whom it is addressed. 

 

 

ITEM  7A
11 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

(c) If delivered by facsimile transmission, a Notice shall be deemed to have been 

given upon receipt of the entire document by the receiving Party's facsimile machine as shown 

by the transmission report issued by the transmitting facsimile machine. Notice transmitted after 

5 p.m. or on Saturday or Sunday shall be deemed to have been given on the next business day. 

 

(d) If delivered by regular U.S. mail, a Notice shall be deemed to have been given 

five (5) calendar days after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service. 

 

Notices shall be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below: 

 

City:  City Clerk 

 City of Colfax 

 P.O. Box 702 

 Colfax, CA 95713 

 Telephone: (530) 346-2313 

 Facsimile:  (530) 346-6214 

 

With a  

copy to: City Attorney, City of Colfax 

 Alfred A. Cabral  

 Pelletreau, Alderson & Cabral 

 P.O. Box 1000 

 Grass Valley, CA 95945 

 Telephone: (510) 262-2100 

 Facsimile:  (530) 478-0368  

 

Developer: 

 Jaskaran “Jay” Gill 

 _______________ 

 _______________ 

 _______________ 

 

Any Party may change its mailing address or contact person(s) at any time by giving written 

notice of such change to the other Party in the manner provided herein at least ten (10) days prior 

to the date such change is effected. 

 

6.2  Form and Effect of Notice.  Every Notice (other than the giving or withholding of 

consent, approval or satisfaction under this Agreement but including requests therefor) given to a 

Party shall comply with the following requirements. Each such Notice shall state: (i) the Section 

of this Agreement pursuant to which the Notice is given; (ii) the period of time within which the 

recipient of the notice must respond or if no response is required, a statement to that effect; and 

(iii) if applicable, that the failure to respond to the notice within the stated time period shall be 

deemed to be the equivalent of the recipient's approval of or consent to the subject matter of the 

Notice. Each request for consent or approval shall contain reasonably sufficient data or 

documentation to enable the recipient to make an informed decision. In no event shall notice be 

deemed given nor shall a Party's approval of, consent to, or satisfaction with, the subject matter 

ITEM  7A
12 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

of a notice be deemed given by such Party's failure to object or respond thereto if such notice did 

not fully comply with the requirements of this Section. No waiver of this Section shall be 

inferred or implied from any act (including conditional approvals, if any) of a Party, unless such 

waiver is in writing, specifying the nature and extent of the waiver. 

Section 7.  Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 

7.1 Default; Termination.  Failure or unreasonable delay by any Party to perform any 

obligation under this Agreement for a period of fifteen (15) days after written notice thereof shall 

constitute an Event of Default under this Agreement, subject to extensions of time by mutual 

consent in writing or discretionary approval of extensions by the City Council. Said notice shall 

specify the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which said default may be 

satisfactorily cured. If the nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably be cured 

within such fifteen (15) day period, the commencement of the cure within such time period and 

the subsequent diligent prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such 

period. Subject to the foregoing, after notice and expiration of the fifteen (15) day period without 

cure, if applicable, the Party that issued the notice of default, at its option, may institute 

alternative dispute resolution proceedings pursuant to this Agreement and/or give notice of intent 

to terminate the Agreement. The waiver by any Party of any Event of Default under this 

Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other 

provision of this Agreement. 

 
7.2 Cooperation in the Event of Third-Party Legal Challenge.  In the event of any legal or 
equitable action or proceeding instituted by a third party challenging the validity of any provision 
of this Agreement or the procedures leading to its initial adoption, the Parties hereby agree to 
cooperate in defending said action or proceeding, and Developer agrees to diligently defend any 
such action or proceeding and to bear the litigation expenses of defense, including attorney's 
fees. Developer further agrees to hold the City/Agency harmless from all claims for recovery of 
the third party's litigation expenses, including attorney's fees. 

7.3  Actions; Remedies; Attorney's Fees.  In addition to any other rights and remedies, each 

Party may institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, enforce any covenant or 

agreement herein, enjoin any threatened or attempted violation or enforce by specific 

performance the obligations and rights of the Parties hereto. In no event shall any Party or its 

officers, agents or employees be liable in monetary damages for any breach or violation of this 

Agreement, it being expressly understood and agreed that the sole legal or equitable remedy 

available for a breach or violation of this Agreement by any Party shall be an action in 

mandamus, specific performance, injunctive or declaratory relief to enforce the provisions of this 

Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be foreclosed from initiating an 

action to enforce Developer’s obligations to make monetary payments under this Agreement as a 

condition for completing the Development Project. In any such legal action, the prevailing Party 

shall be entitled to recover all litigation expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and court 

costs. 

 

7.4 Amendment.  This Agreement may be canceled, modified or amended only by mutual 

written consent of the Parties or by legal process.  

 

 

ITEM  7A
13 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

7.5  Negation of Partnership, Agency and Joint Venture.  The Parties specifically 

acknowledge that no Party is acting as the agent of the other in any respect hereunder, and that 

each Party is an independent contracting entity with respect to the terms, covenants and 

conditions contained in this Agreement. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

deemed to create a partnership between or among the Parties in the businesses of Developer or 

the affairs of the City, or otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be considered joint venturers or 

members of any joint enterprise. This Agreement is not intended nor shall it be construed to 

create any third party beneficiary rights in any person who is not expressly made a Party and 

signatory to this Agreement. 

7.6 Severability.  Invalidation of any provision of this Agreement, or of the application 

thereof to any person, by judgment or court order shall in no way affect any of the other 

provisions hereof or the application thereof to any other person or circumstances and the same 

shall remain in full force and effect, unless enforcement of this Agreement as so invalidated 

would be unreasonable or grossly inequitable under all the circumstances or would frustrate the 

purposes of this Agreement. 

 

7.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the Exhibits hereto contain all the 

representations and the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter 

hereof. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all prior correspondence, memoranda, 

agreements, warranties or representations are superseded in total by this Agreement and the 

Exhibits hereto. 

 

7.8 Further Documents.  Each Party shall execute and deliver such further documents as may 

be reasonably necessary to achieve the objectives of this Agreement. 

 

7.9 Governing Law; Interpretation of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 

interpreted in accordance with the laws of the United States, the State of California and the City 

of Colfax. 

7.10 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original Agreement. 

7.11 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and every term 

and condition hereof. 

7.12 Notice of Termination.  Upon the expiration of this Agreement, the Parties hereto shall, if 

requested by another Party, execute for recordation in the Official Records of Placer County, a 

notice stating that this Agreement has expired, that the Parties have performed all their duties and 

obligations hereunder and that this Agreement is no longer an encumbrance or servitude on the 

Property. 

 

7.13 Nondiscrimination.  Developer shall include a nondiscrimination clause with any deed, 

lease, contract for the sale, lease, sublease or other transfer of any portion of the Property.  

  

ITEM  7A
14 of 19



MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

7.14 Exhibits. The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein 

for all purposes: 

Exhibit A:  Placer County Assessor’s Parcel #100-240-016-000 depicted on Placer County,  

  California Assessor’s Map Book 100, Page 24 

Exhibit B:  Conceptual Site Plan 

Exhibit C:  Road Improvements 

Exhibit D:  Construction Cost Estimate 

 

7.15 Alternative Dispute Resolution.   

 

            7.15.1     Before resorting to arbitration or other legal process, the Parties shall meet and 

confer and attempt to amicably resolve any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement, 

subject to the following provisions. Any Party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the 

other Party pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice by 

the Party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each Party shall meet in person 

and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, or the duly authorized 

person acting in their absence, shall attend the meeting, shall have full authority to resolve the 

dispute and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto. If any dispute remains unresolved 

at the end of the meeting, any Party to this Agreement shall have the right to invoke the binding 

arbitration process provided for in Section 7.15.2 below. 

 

7.15.2    If this meet and confer process is unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the 

Parties shall each select a preferred arbitrator, and the two selected arbitrators shall collectively 

select a third arbitrator from the list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the 

Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service (JAMS).  The arbitration shall be conducted by the 

selected third neutral arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of the California Arbitration Act, 

sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  In such case, the provisions of 

Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 shall apply and are hereby incorporated 

into this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 

above written. 

 

CITY: 

 

CITY OF COLFAX, a California municipal corporation 

 

By: ___________________________________________ 

 Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

By:  ___________________________________________ 

 

 

ITEM  7A
15 of 19



S
.
 
A

U
B

U
R

N
 
 
S

T
.

C

E

N

T

R

A

L

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

H
W

Y
. 
1
7
4

W

H

I

T

C

O

M

B

I
-
8
0

I

-

8

0

H
W

Y
.

1
7
4

H

W

Y

.
 
1

7

4

AVE.

H:\1PROJ\17-05 COLFAX COMMERCIAL\CAD\SHEET SETS\TENTATIVE MAP\EXHIBITS\17-05 - PUBLIC NOTICE MAP.DWG 3/7/2018 5:04 PM

FEBRUARY 22, 2018

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

SITE

VICINITY MAP
NTS

SITE INFORMATION
OWNER: COLFAX AUBURN LLC
APN: 100-240-016 PLACER COUNTY
SITE ACREAGE: 8.39 ACRES

COLFAX
MAIDU

VILLAGE

SCALE: 1" =       

0

200

200 100 200

EXHIBIT A
ITEM  7A

16 of 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANSEN BROTHERS ENTERPRISES PARCEL 2 29/PM/104 O.R.P.C. 44 CENTRAL STREET 006-141-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 100-240-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCDONALDS CORPORATION 501 AUBURN ST 100-240-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEQUOIA WCL INVESTMENTS LLC PLC B 27/PM/68 O.R..P.C. 555 AUBURN STREET 100-230-048

AutoCAD SHX Text
598 RAILROAD AVE 100-240-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
333 AUBURN ST 100-240-015

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLFAX AUBURN LLC PORTION OF PAR A  17/PM/107 O.R.P.C. DOC 2017-R0009520

AutoCAD SHX Text
400 AUBURN ST 006-144-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
404 AUBURN ST 100-240-007

AutoCAD SHX Text
424 AUBURN ST 100-240-008

AutoCAD SHX Text
504 AUBURN ST 100-230-058

AutoCAD SHX Text
520 AUBURN ST 100-230-059

AutoCAD SHX Text
550 AUBURN ST 100-230-060

AutoCAD SHX Text
313 AUBURN ST 006-141-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
309 AUBURN ST 006-141-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
303 AUBURN ST 006-141-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
44 CENTRAL STREET 006-141-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
110 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-047

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-007

AutoCAD SHX Text
308 AUBURN ST 006-143-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 AUBURN ST 006-143-013

AutoCAD SHX Text
313 HWY 174 006-143-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
006-143-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
320 AUBURN ST 006-143-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
323 HWY 174 006-143-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
313 HWY 174 006-143-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
301 HWY 174 006-143-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
130 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-057

AutoCAD SHX Text
152 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-054

AutoCAD SHX Text
123 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-045

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-051

AutoCAD SHX Text
 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD AVE 100-160-006

AutoCAD SHX Text
683 RAILROAD AVE 100-160-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD AVE 100-160-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
615 RAILROAD AVE 100-160-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD AVE 100-160-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
603 RAILROAD AVE 100-160-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
139 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-008

AutoCAD SHX Text
681 CORTO PASSI LN 100-230-052

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 100-240-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 305 RAILROAD AVE 006-131-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-80 CALTRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITCOMB AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 135

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANYON WAY



ITEM  7A
17 of 19



EXHIBIT C ITEM  7A
18 of 19



EXHIBIT D

Quant/ Unit Unit Cost Cost

Grading 1 ls 10,000$ 10,000$         Allowance ‐ no design available

Stamped HMA 745 sf 28$         20,860$         Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

4th Leg Road/Entry 3845 sf 25$         96,125$         Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

4th Leg curb/gutter 570 lf 32$         18,240$         Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

4th Leg Sidewalk 50% City/Developer 2352 sf 15$         35,280$         Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

Rt turn pocket 2563 sf 25$         64,075$         Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

Signs & Pavement Markings 1 ls 1 5,000$           Allowance ‐ no design available

Subtotal ‐ Developer Road Improvements 239,580$      Previous Estimate $215k

Drainage 1 ls 15,000$ 15,000$         Allowance ‐ no design available

Waterline 1 ls 20,000$ 20,000$         Allowance ‐ no design available

Sewer 1 ls 10,000$ 10,000$         Allowance ‐ no design available

Subtotal ‐ Developer Utilities 45,000$       

Developer Improvements in Public Right of Way 275,000$     

Maidu Village Travel Center ‐ Estimate of Developer Improvements in Public Right of Way

Rev 2/27/2018

ITEM  7A
19 of 19



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE MARCH 28, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer  
DATE: March 28, 2018 

SUBJECT: Caltrans Cooperative Agreement for Federal Transportation Funds for the S. 
Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project. 

 

X N/A    FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 19-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans under the State Highway Operations and Protection Program 
(SHOPP) for the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project. 

 
BACKROUND AND DISCUSSION:  

The City of Colfax periodically receives State and Federal grants for transportation related projects 

which are administered through the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  Current 

master agreements between the City and Caltrans are required in order for the City to receive 

reimbursement for grant funded transportation project expenses.   

Caltrans uses an agreement called a Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement 

for Federal-Aid Projects (Master Agreement) with local agencies such as the City of Colfax. On 

February 28, the City entered into this agreement under Resolution 11-2018.  

Under the umbrella of a Master Agreement, Caltrans uses Program Supplement Agreements that 

are specific to individual projects. The City recently received approval for $2.15M in Caltrans 

administered grants for the S. Auburn Roundabout Project.  In order to begin invoicing for 

reimbursement for the Project, a Program Supplement Agreement between the City and Caltrans 

must be executed.  

On January 17, 2018 the City Engineer requested funding contributions of the $1.25M from the 

State Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) and also requested authority to take 

the lead on all phases of the project.  Caltrans has agreed to the City’s request.  On March 2, 

2018, Caltrans provided the City with a Cooperative Agreement formalizing the terms for the City’s 

role as lead agency and providing the City with up to $1.25M in state funding towards the project.  

A copy of the Cooperative Agreement is included as Attachment 2. 

ITEM  7B
1 of 36



2 

 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
In order to receive the $1.25M of SHOPP federal funding awarded to the City for the S. Auburn 

Roundabout Project, the City must execute a cooperative agreement.  Entering into these 

agreements will allow the City to be reimbursed for Project expenses covered under the federal 

grant funding. It should be noted that administration of federally funded transportation projects 

requires substantial additional staff effort to process, manage and monitor the grants in compliance 

with the various State and Federal regulations.  Each project is also subject to a process audit 

which is typically conducted at the conclusion of each project by Caltrans and sometimes the 

Federal Highway Administration.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 19-2018 
2. SHOPP Cooperative Agreement  

ITEM  7B
2 of 36



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 19-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT WITH CALTRANS UNDER THE STATE HIGHWAY OPERATIONS 

AND PROTECTION PROGRAM FOR THE S. AUBURN ST. AND I-80 
ROUNDABOUT PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax is eligible to receive State and/or Federal funding for 
certain transportation projects through the State of California, Department of 
Transportation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax desires to enter into an agreement with the State of 
California, Department of Transportation to allow the City to make use of State administered 
funds for transportation projects; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Transportation requests the City 
enter into a cooperative agreement to formalize the terms for the City’s role as lead agency for 
the project. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 
 

1) The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are 
incorporated into this Resolution. 

 

2) The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of and in the name of 
the City of Colfax the Cooperative Agreement for the S. Auburn Street and I-80 
Roundabout Project in the form attached to this Resolution. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th day of March 2018 
by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:       ______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  7B
3 of 36



ITEM  7B
4 of 36



ITEM  7B
5 of 36



ITEM  7B
6 of 36



ITEM  7B
7 of 36



ITEM  7B
8 of 36



ITEM  7B
9 of 36



ITEM  7B
10 of 36



ITEM  7B
11 of 36



ITEM  7B
12 of 36



ITEM  7B
13 of 36



ITEM  7B
14 of 36



ITEM  7B
15 of 36



ITEM  7B
16 of 36



ITEM  7B
17 of 36



ITEM  7B
18 of 36



ITEM  7B
19 of 36



ITEM  7B
20 of 36



ITEM  7B
21 of 36



ITEM  7B
22 of 36



ITEM  7B
23 of 36



ITEM  7B
24 of 36



ITEM  7B
25 of 36



ITEM  7B
26 of 36



ITEM  7B
27 of 36



ITEM  7B
28 of 36



ITEM  7B
29 of 36



ITEM  7B
30 of 36



ITEM  7B
31 of 36



ITEM  7B
32 of 36



ITEM  7B
33 of 36



ITEM  7B
34 of 36



ITEM  7B
35 of 36



ITEM  7B
36 of 36


	00A 180328 Agenda
	04A 180314 Minutes
	04B Cash Summary February
	2018-08 Staff Report Cash Summary Feb 2018
	180328 Cash Summary Data

	04C CalOES Designation for Pond III FEMA
	170809 SR CalOES Pond 3
	Resolution 17-2018 complete
	Resolution 17-2018 CalOES application authorization.pdf

	CalOES 89 completed

	07A Maidu Village Road Improvement Agreement
	180320bh_Staff Report
	Resolution 18-2018 Maidu Road Improvement
	180321eh_Deposit Agreement Rev 4
	180313eh_Exhibit A
	Sheets and Views
	Exhibit A - 11x17


	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	180313hh_Exhibit D Cost Estimate

	07B COOP Agreement Catrans re Maidu
	Staff Report - State Highway Operation and Protection Program Cooperative  Agreement Feb 28 2018
	Resolution 19-2018
	180328 Coop Agreement for Maidu


	PRINT: 
	RESET: 
	Disaster No: #4301
	Cal OES ID No: 061-14498
	DUNS No: 004949152
	SUBRECIPIENTS NAME: City of Colfax
	ADDRESS: PO Box 702/33 S. Main Street
	CITY: Colfax
	STATE: CA
	ZIP CODE: 95713
	TELEPHONE: 530-346-2313
	FAX NUMBER: 530-346-6214
	AUTHORIZED AGENT: Wes Heathcock
	TITLE: City Manager
	EMAIL ADDRESS: wes.heathcock@colfax-ca.gov
	PRINTED NAME: Wes Heathcock
	TITLE_2: City Manager
	DATE: 


